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ASSOCIATES
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of PS Toll Road Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of PS Toll Road Private Limited {“the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, inchiding the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of Cash Flows
and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information {hereinafter referred to as
“Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2023, its losses including Other Comprehensive Income, its Cash Flows and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {"SA”) specified under
Section 143(10} of the Act, Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respensibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial

statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the informatien included in the Board's report and shareholder's
Information, but does not inciude the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and wesgotrict
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Unit No 122, 1st Floor, Nahar & Seth Industrial Estate, Cardinal Gracious Rd, Chakala, Andheri (E), MamBar400089.

@-'\ 5 TSR
&?ﬁ +@1 22 4608 3939 / 4608 3940 é;,gg mumbai@mkps.in & wwwankps.in

Also at: New Delhi, Bengaluru, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Kolkata, Raipur, Bhubaneswar, Cuttack, Sambalpur, Rourkela




& ASSOCIATES
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our :'espglul%ﬁt-gﬁﬁg J’%a’% 91% %tI‘IJ}L\xj‘TA NTS

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our
audit or otherwise appears to be materiaily misstated. if, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we required to
report that fact. The other information is likely to be provided to us after the date of our report,

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134{5) of the
Act, with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view
of the Financial Position, Financial Performance including Other Comprehensive Income, Cash
Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other regularities; selection and application of the appropriate
accounting policies; making: ]udgements and estimates. that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, ;mplemmtat:on and” ‘maintenance of adequat 1_te1 nal financial controls, that were
operating effectlvely for ensuring the accuracy and: '_'ompleteness of the accounting records,
relevant to the prepa: ation and fair presentation of the ﬁnanma} statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material nusstatement whether due to ﬁaud Or error.

In preparing _t_h financial statements, management is 1espons: ' _f_‘o; assessing the Company’s
ability to contm _ e as a going concern, dlsclosmg, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the gomg concern basis of accountmg unless management” ither intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do 50.

Those Board of Dlrectms are also 1esponsﬁale for averseeing the (,ompany s financial reporting
process. .

Auditor’s Responsibi!i:ti'éélfq'_n_'_._t_l_l_e'_'.'{\ﬁdit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
econocmic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticisin throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resuiting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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+  Obtain an understanding of internal contreol relevant to the glldl{kl@ E%@,Etg] d%sgg%qlllijc{\lTA NTS

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143{3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

+  Hvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’'s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a

going concern.

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the fi financial statements represent the underlying
Ji_a manner that achleves fair presentation.

transactions and _event

Materiality is the magmtude of misstatements in the financial ‘statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes jt p: ‘obable that the economic deus:ons ofar _onabiy knowledgeable user of the
ind AS Financial Statementa may be influenced. WL COﬁS]del quantitatlvn materiality and qualitative

factors in:

i plan mng the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the resu]{s of our work; and
e the effect of any identified. 1sstalemults in the h dAS Financial Statements.

ii. toeval

We cmmmlmcato wuil those charged w1Lh gover nance regar dmg, among other matters, the
planned scope and tlmmg of the audit and 'significant audit ﬁndmgs, _1ncludmg any significant
deficiencies in inter nal comt ol that w 'dentlfy during our audit.

We also provide those chaz ged w1th govemance with a statement ihat we iave complied with
relevant ethical requirements regaldmg independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;




b)

d)

e)

g}

h)
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In our opinion, proper books of account as required b)plléive\ ﬁaT/E @‘EP léltherQIMTANTS

Company so far as appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this
report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards
specified under section 133 of the Act;

On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
ont March 31, 2023, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the

Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company with reference to these financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.,

With respect to the. other:matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
Act, as amended, we report that no

remuneration has been paid by the company. to'its divectors during the year. Hence the

;equuement_ofthe company for complnnce nder t'l  section is not applicable.

With 1espect to the other matters to be mc uded in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Ru}es 11 of the Companies {Audit. and Auditors) ‘Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our infor mation and according to'the explanations given to us
and as replesented by the managemcnt '

i. 'The Company has d;sclosed the impact of pendmg htigatmn as at March 31,
2023 on its financial pasmon in its Financial Statemen_ - Refer Note No. 29 of

the : accompanymg f 1nanc1al statements;

ii. The Company dld not have any lfong-term contracts 1ncludlng derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ifi. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. (a) Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, as disclosed in Note No. 38 to the financial statement no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persens or entities identified in any manner whatsaever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) Management has represented to us that to the best of its lmomhaage AN
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been received by the Company from any per son[s 01 ez%ﬁy%esﬁ%%g NTANTS

foreign entities ("Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether zecorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatscever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
pravide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries

(c) Based on our audit procedure conducted that are considered reascnable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that
cause us to believe that the representation given by the management under
paragraph (2} (1) (iv) (a) & (b) contain any material misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.
For MKPS & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 302014E

le,! endra Khanda] e
riner . '
Membership No 06 3025
UDIN : 23065025BGRDLU4672

Place : Munﬂj_qi
bate :April 26,2023
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“ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON T NRANGRAY. BSTATIENTS TANTS
OF PS TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED.

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading of "Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanatiens provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit,

we state that:

i) (a)  (A) The company does not carry an property, plant and equipment in its financial
statements and hence the reporting requirements under this sub-clause is not

applicable.
(B} The rompany has maintained proper records showing full particulars of its

intangible assets.

(b} In view of there being no property, plant and equipment, the reporting requirements
under this sub-ciause is not applicable.

() There are no immovable properties disclosed in the accompanying financial
statements and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (¢) of clause (i) of
paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable. L

(d) As exp]_a_in_éd to us, the company.has not revalued any of its Intangible assets during

(e)  According to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, we report that no proceedings have been
injtiated during the year or are pending against the company as at March 31, 2023 for
holding any benami property under.the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988

(45°0f 1988} and rules made thereunder.

i (@ In E}_u:r_;._.opinion, and according to the information and exp ations given to us, the
comp_a_r_ly_:. does not carry any -inventories. Hence, the reporting requirements under
sub-ctause (a) of clause (ii) of paragraph 3 of the order are not appli

(b} The company has _':_-';'j__i)_t_zi__bée_ii""sanctioned any working capital limits from banks or
financial institutions and hence the reporting requirements under sub-clause (1) of
clause (i) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable.

iii}  The company has not made investments in, provided any guarantee or Security or granted
any loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the reporting requirement
of clause 3(iif)(a}, (b}.(c).(d),(e} & (f) of the Order are not applicable.

iv}  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not advanced any loans to directors / to a company in which the Director is interested to
which the provisions of section 185 of the Act apply. Further, based on the information and
explanations given to us, being an infrastructure company, the provisions of section 186 of
the Act to the extent of loans, guarantees and securities granted are not applicable to the
company. Hence, the reporting requirements under clause {iv) of paragraph 3 of the order
are not applicable.

v} Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company
has not accepted any deposits during the period under audit. Consequently, the dipegives-
issued by Reserve Bank of india and the provisions of sections 73 to 76 of the Acgang e
rules framed thereunder are not applicable.




vi)

vii}

viii)
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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the company. We have broadly reviewed such
records and are of the opinien that prima-facie, the prescribed records have heen made and
maintained, We have not, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view
to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(&)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and

based on our examination of the books of the company, the company is generally
regular in depositing undisputed applicable statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, and any other
materjal statutory dues to the appropriate authorities, which are deposited with
delay.
There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax,
provident {und, employees’ state insurance, incomc tax, and any other material
statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

() According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in cause (a) above which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute except for the foiIowmg cases:

Name of the: Nalure e of Period - Forum where | Amount
statute T Dues which__:;f e | dispute is { involved
' amou | pending {inRs.)

i related i
Finance  Act, | Service Tax October 2010 Bombay High | 11,71,83,852
1994 to‘September.{:Ce
e 2015 i
Income  Tax | income Tax  |AY 2014-15 17,53,80,730
Act, 1961 1Es

(a) (i) The Company has defaulted in payment of following dues to the banks during
the year, which were paid on or before the Balance Sheet date, Refer Note no. 10

(a) (6b) to financial statements:

Nature of | Name of | Amount not paid an No. of days delay
bhorrowing Lender due date or unpaid
(Rs. In Millions)
Principal interest | Principal | Interest
Term Loan AXIS BANK 79.26 | 213.35 145 145
iDFC BANK 70,161 211.04 145 145
5Bl 20.72 54.73 145 145
IIFCL 5817 | 169.21 145 145




()

(xi}

(xii)
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{ii) The Company has defaulted in repayment of fdyRIAE RleOtABE RN TANTS

during the year, which were not paid as at the Balance Sheet date. Refer Note no.
10 (a) (6¢]) to financial statements:

Nature of | Name of Lender | Amount not paid on | No. of days delay
borrowing due date (Rs. In | orunpaid
Millions)
Principal Interest | Principal | Interest
Term Loan | AXIS BANK 57.10 137.27 547 3906
1DFC BANK 86.07 138.05 547 396
SBI 24.33 49,77 547 396
[iFCL 71.31 111.64 547 396

{b)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority, (refer Note no.
16(a)(1)(ix) to the financial statement}

() In cur opinicn and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
{resh term loans have been taken during the year.

(d)  On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, in our
opinion funds 1alsed on. shon ferm basni-a,g,gl egating to Rs. 6071 Million have
b(,en pz ima-facie being used for ]ong ter pnses as at the end of the year.

(e) :'_'1 he company does not have any sub91d|al y, ;Omt venture or associate and hence
- the reporting requirements unde; sub clause (e) of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of
“the order are not applicable. : :

. The company does not have 'ziny subsidiary, joint. Véhtun or associate and hence
: the reporting requirements undu sub-clause (l'_} of clause (ix) of paragraph 3 of
“the order are not apphcabl

of

(a) :'.:';'The Company has not. 1a19ed money by way of imua_ public offer or further
'pubht offer [mc]udmg, debt instruments) and hence Llause {a) of paragraph 3
ofthe 01 deris not appllcahle to the Company.

{b) Durmg the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment of shares
or fully or partly or optionally convertible debentures and Hence reporting
under clause (x}{b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a)  Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true
and fair view of the financial statements and as per information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

{b)  During the year, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 has been filed by cost auditor/Secretarial auditor or by us in Form
ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government,

{c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle bhlower
complaints received by the Company during the year.

In our opinion, Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of gialse
(x#1) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b
B
s
i
i
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(xiii} In our opinion and according to the information andGkhhRilitpR eBeA GCRUN TANTS

transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 188 and section 177 of
the Actand their details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc,, as required

by the applicable accounting standards,

{xiv) {a)  In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and

nature of its business.

(b)  We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date,
for the period under audit for the purpose of planning our audit procedures.

(xv) According to the information and explanations provided by the management, the
Company has not entered intc any non-cash transaction with directors or persons
connected with him as referred to in Section 192 of the Act.

(twi) (@ To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1634,

(b} Inour opinion, and according to the information and explanations provided to us
and on the basis of our audit procedures, the Company has not conducted any
Non- Bankmg Financial or Housing Finance activities during the year as per the
Resm_ve bank of india Act 1934.

(¢} . ":_:.'jln our opinion, and according to the infor malmn and explanations provided to
o -us, the Company is not a Core: Inveetmem Company (CIC) as defined in the
- regulations made by the Reser ve Bank oflnd:a

" As represented by the mana:gem'ent the group does not have more than one core
* investment company (CIC}:as part of the group r the definition of group
ontamed in Core !nveslment Companies (Reserved Bank) Directions, 2016.

(dy

{xvii) In our: 0])1111011 and acu)ldmg {0 lhe mf(n mation and exp]anahons provided to us,
| year however it has

incurred cash losses _0{R5'231 85 Mllli()]'l in the :mmedlately pr ecedml., financial year.

{(xviii) There has heen no 1e§|gnatmn of the statutory auditors dulmg the year. Therefore,
provisions of clause (xviii) of Paragraph 3 of the Order are not app]ncabie to the
Company.

{xix} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the

financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial Habilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date
of the audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a peried of one year from the balance sheet date, will.ges
discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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procedures, The Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) contribution under section 135
of the Act js not applicable to the Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause (xx) (a)
& {b) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xx)

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no. 30201 4F

Narendara Knandal
Partner

Membership No.: 065025
UDIN : 23065025BGRDLU4672

Place :Mumbai
PDate :April 26,2023
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON THH RIRANURNL STATEMENTSTANTS
OF PS TOLL ROAD PRIVATE LIMITED

(Referred to in paragraph 2 {f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ of
our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”}

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to financial
statement of P§ Toll Road Private Limited (“the Company”} as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction
with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note an
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Qver Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”} issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants .of-India :("ICAI”). These responsibilities inctude the design,
implementation and mamlcnance of adequate inter nal f’ﬁanma! controls that were operating
effectively for ensulmg the orderly and efficient conduct ‘of its business, including adherence to
Company’s policies, ‘the saleguarding of its assets, the pzevenuon and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the acwuntmg 1‘ec01ds and the timely preparation of
reliable fmanmal information, as required under the Aci

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our IESIJO!]S]b]lILy is to express an opmlon_'on ‘the Company's intex nal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these fmanmal statements base our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the (‘u:dancc Note issued by ICAI and:.the Standards on Auditing
prescribed under. Section 143(10) of the A(.l to the extent applicable ‘to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and: ‘the Guidance Note require that’ _we comply with ethical
requirements and plan:and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls'_'_over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements was established and maintained and if such controls 0;}erdted effectively in all

material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the aquuacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's interna! financial controls system over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reportifigvi@THeREDcA CETHINTANTS
Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financiai statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations
of management and directors of the company ; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assels that could have a material effect on the Financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference
To These Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limjtations of inLemaI financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial- ::.latements 11}c]udmg Lhe _possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, ‘material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not he detected. Aiso, p: ojections of any evaluation of thL internal financial controls over financial
reporting with leference to these financial statements to {uture periods are subject to the risk
that the inter nai financial control over financial: 1eportmg ‘with reference to these financial
statements may- become inadequate because of: changc:, in- condlllom or that the degree of
compliance w1th the policies or procedures may-delel iorate. .

Opinion

in our opmlon ‘to the best of cur infor matlon and according to the p]anat;ons given to us, the
Company has, in ali anaterial respects, an adequatu internal financial contmls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial centrols over financial reporting were perating effectively as
at 31 March 2023, based on the er 1terla “for internal financial control: over financial reporting
established by the Company consideri lng ‘the essential components of internal ‘control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal ‘Financial Controls Over Financial Repomng issued by ‘the

Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration no, 302014E

MNarendra Khandai

Partner

Membership No.: 065025
UDIN : 23065025BGRDLU4672

Piace :Mumbai
Date :April 26,2023




PS Toll Road Private Limited
CIN : U45203MH2010PTC199879
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

¥ Millions
. As at As at
Particulars Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a) Concession intangible assets 4 31,397.28 20,318.84
(b} Intangible assets under development 4 761.18 13,376.71
{¢} Other non - current assets & - 470.35
{d} Current Tax Assets {Nel) 60.75 39.09
Total Non-Current Assets 32,219.21 34,204.99
Current assets
(u} Financlal Assets
{ij Cash and cash equivalents 5a 128.02 138.63
{iiy Other financial assel 5 94,95 175.76
{b} Olher current assets 7 90.58 166.18
Total Current Assets 313.55 480.57
Total Assets 32,532.76 34,685.56
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity share capital 8 0.11 0.11
(b} Subordinated debt (in nature of Equity) 9a 10,785.11 10,785.11
{c) Other equity Sh {4,037.96) {1,681.95)
Total Equity 6,747.26 9,103.27
LIABILITIES
Non-current lizbilities
{a) Financial Liabilities
(iy Borrowings 10a 6,628.86 7.185.21
{if} Other fnancial liabilites 12b 11,742.07 11.846.98
{b) Provisions 13b 187 48 0.27
Fotat Non-Current Liabilities 18,558.41 19,032.48
Current liabifities
{a) Financial Liabilifies
(i} Borrowings 10b 1,596.90 823.67
{ii) Trade payables
(A) Total outslanding dues of Micro & Small
Enlerprises - -
(B} Total outslanding dues of creditors olher "
than Micre & Small Enterprises 37711 431.52
{iii}y Other financial fiabilities 12a 5,247.28 5,270.45
{b) Other current liabililies 14 5.76 14.86
{c) Provisions 13a 0.04 0.33
Total Current Liabitities 7,227.09 6,544.83
Totat Equity and Liabilities 32,532.76 34,685.56
The accompanying notes 1 to 38 are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our altached report of even date
For MKPS & Associates For and on behalf of the Beard
Charlered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014E
Trina Subimal Das Sandeep Joshi

Marendra Khandal
Partner
Membership Number : 065025

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 28, 2023

Director
DIN: 08236805

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 26, 2023

Director
DiN: 09586595




PS Toll Road Private Limited
CIN : U45203MH2010PTC199879
Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended March 31, 2023

¥ Millions
Year ended Year ended

Particufars Note March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Revenue from Operations 15 §,130.32 4,335.66
Other Income 16 26.06 19.06
Total Income 5,156.38 4,354.72
Expenses

Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses 17 850.25 1,017.3¢

Construction cost 1,030.79 1,327.67

Empioyee benefils expense 18 46.91 46.96

Finance costs 19 2,859.66 2,077,985

Amortization expense 4 2,604.86 1,624.77

Other expenses 20 120,27 116.60
Total expenses 7.512.74 6,211.34
Loss before tax (2,356.36) (1,856.62)
Tax expense

income tax for earfier years 3.91 -

Deferred tax chargef{credit) - -
l.oss after tax {2,360.27) {1,856.62}
Other Comprehensive Income
- {tems that will not be reclassifiecto profitioss

Remeasurements of net defined benefit plans : Gains / (L.oss) 4.26 (2.08)
- Income tax relating to above - -
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 4.26 {2.08}
Total Comprehensive Income NLoss) (2,356.01) {1,858.70)

Earnings/(loss) per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10 per share)
Basic & Diluted 28

As per our attached report of even date.

For MKPS & Associates
Chaitered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 302014

Ndrendra Khandal
Partner
Membership Number : 065025

Place: Mumbai
Date: Aprit 26, 2023

(2,20,092.06) (1.73,127.66)

For and on hehalf of the Board

Sandeep Joshi
Director
DIN: 09586595

Trina Subimal Das
Director
DIN: 08236805

Place: Mumbai
Date: Aprii 26, 2023




S To#l Road Private Limited
Cash flow Statement for year endad March 3%, 2023

¥ Milllons

Particutars

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
March 31, 2022

A. CASH FLOW FRON OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Loss before tax
Adjustrents for:

Amartisation expenses

Inferest income

Expecled Credit Loss

Finance Cost

Excess provision writlen back

MMR Provision

Provision for Gratuity and lLeave encashment

Cash Generated from Operations beforeworking capitaf changes

Adfustments for.
{Increase}decrease in tinancial assets

{increase)/decrease in cther current assels
Increasef{decrease) in trade payables
increasef{decrease) in other financial liabifities
Increasef(decrease) in provisions
increasef{decrease} in other current fiabilities

Cash generated from operations
TFaxes {paid) nel of refunds

Net cash generated trom operating activitios - [A]

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase of intangible assels {including intangible assest under development, caplial

advance, capital creditors)

inlerest received
Net cash {used in) / generated from investing activities - [B)

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Issue of equity Shares
Proceeds from short lerm borrowings
Repayment of fong term borrowings

Irterest paid
Net cash used in tinancing activities - [C]

Netincrease/{decrease} in cash and cash equivalents - [A+B+C)

Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of thi year

Components of Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks - in Current accounts

Cash on hand
Total Cash and cash equivalents

Note:

{2,356.36) (1,856.62)
2,604.86 162477
{1.00) {2.64)
2.07 .28
2,859,66 2,077.95
(22.13) -
210.87 -
1,47 1.34
3,556.14 1.851.08
8081 5872
73.53 {89.52)
(32.28) 227.94
{5.93) 1.84
(20.85) (3.37)
{9.10) 13.55
86.17 Z05.97
3,385.31 2,060.25
(25.58) 13.26
3358.73 707351
{2,511.86}) {1,594 .45)
1,00 2.64
(2.510.86) (1.561.82)
436.00 -
(228.31) {103.46)
(4,067.17 {603.89)
(659,48 (707.35)
{(10.61) (225.56)
138.63 364.29
128.02 73863
127.84 138,18
015 0.45
128.02 73063

i) The above Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Methad® as sef out in ind AS 7, 'Statement of Cash Flows'.

ii) Refer Note 36 - Disclosure pursuant fo para 44 A fo 44 E of Ind AS 7 -Cash flow Slalemenis

ili} The balance lying in escrow / current account with banks of Rs. 127.84 mifion (Rs. 138.18 million} are held as security against

As per our attached report of even date.

For MKPS & Assaciates
Chartered Accountanis .

Firm Registration No. 302014,

For and on behalf of the Board

)farendra Khandat Trina Subimal Das Sandeep Joshi
Partner Direclor Birector
Membership Number : 065025 DIN: 08236805 DIN: 09586595
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: April 26, 2023

Bate: April 26, 2023




PS Toll Road Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Z Mitlions
Balance at the Changes in equity | Balance at the end
Particulars beginning of the | share capital during of the year
year the year
For the year ended 31st March, 2022 0.1 - 0.11
For the year ended 31st March, 2023 0.11 - 011
B. SUB-ORDINATED DEBT (In Nature of equity)
(2.64)
Balance at the Changes during the | Balance at the end
Particulars beginning of the year of the year
year
tor the year ended 371st March, 2022 10,785.11 - 10,785.11
For the year ended 31st March, 2023 10,785.11 - 10,785.11
C. OTHER EQUITY
Equify Component Reserves and
Particutars of compoud Surplus Total
financiat
Balance at Aprit 01, 2021 105.10 71.65 176,75
t.oss for the year {1,856.62) {1,856.62)
Other comprehensive income for the year (2.08) (2.08)
Total comprehensive income for the year - {1,858.70} {1,858.70)
Balance at 31st March, 2022 105.10 (1,787.056) (1,681.95)
Balance at April 01, 2022 105.10 {1,787.05) {1,681.95)
t.oss for the year (2,360.27) {2,360.27}
Other comprehensive income for the period 4.26 4.26
Totai comprehensive income for the period - (2,356.01) (2,356.01)
Balance at 31st March, 2023 105.10 (4,143.06) {4,037.96)

As per our report of even date attached

For MKPS & Associates
Chartered Accountants R
Firm Registration No. 302014

For and on behalf of the Board

Trina Subimal Das
Director
DiN: 08236805

vanaeep JOshi
Director
DIN: 09586595

Marendra Khandai
Partner N
Membership Number : 085025.%

Place: Mumbai

Place: Mumbai
Date: Aprif 26, 2023

Date: Aprif 26, 2023




PS Toli Road Private Limited

CIN : U45203MH2010PTC199879

Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023
Note 1: Corporate information

PS Toll Road Private Limited was awarded on Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT)
basis, augmentation of the existing road from km 725.00 to km 865.35 {approximately 140.35 km) on the
Pune-Satara section of National Highway No.4 in the state of Maharashtra and operation and maintenance
of the existing 4 lanes and additional 2 lanes as per the Concession Agreement dated March 10, 2010 of
the Nationai Highways Authority of India. The Concession Agreement is for a year of 24 years from
October 01, 2010, being the appointed Date stated in clause 1.1 of the said agreement. The company is a
subsidiary of Reliance infrastructure Limited. Toll Coliection Started from October 1,2010.

The Company is subsidiary of Refiance Infrastructure Limited. At the end of the Concession period, the
entire facility will be transferred to NHA,

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on April 26, 2023
Pursuant to the provisions of section 130 of the Act the Centrai Government, income tax auihorities and
other statutory regulatory body and section 131 of the Act the board of directors of the Company have
powers to amend / re-open the financial statements approved by the board / adopted by the members of

the Company.

The Company is a private limited company incorporated and domiciled in India, The registered office of the
Company is located at Reliance Centre,19, Walchand Hirachand Marg, Ballard Estate, Mumbai 400 001.

Note 2: Basis of preparation

These Financial Statements comply in aifl material aspects with Indian Accounting Slandards (Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) {Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015) and other relevant provisions of the Act. These Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and disclosures mandated by Schedule
i of the Act, applicable Ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and regulations.

These Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair vaiue.

These Financial Statements are presented in ¥ Miliions, except where olherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and
disclosures mandaled by Schedute il to the Act, applicable Ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and

regulations.
Note 3: Summary of Significant accounting policies
3.1 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and fabiliies in the balance sheet based on current! non-current
classification.

An asset is freated as current when it is;
* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in nermal operating cycle

*  Expected to be realised within tweive months after the reporting period, or
«  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liabifity for at least

twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
A fiability is current when:
*  ltis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
= itis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
*  There is no unconditional right to defer the settfement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting periad
Alt other liabilities are classified as non-current,

-‘Qeferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.




PS Toll Road Private Limited
CIN : U45203MH2010PTC 199879
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

3.2

3.3

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Functional and presentation currency

ftems included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of the primary
ecehomic enviranment in which the entity operates ( ‘the functional currency’). The functional statements
are presented in Indian Rupees (¥}, which the company’s functional and presentation currency.

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a ifabiliy in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

= Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market pariicipanis would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participanis act in their economic best inlerest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes info accounl a market participant's abilily o
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by seiling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing

the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and fabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assels or liabilities
Level 2- Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly ohservable
Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is upobservabie

For assels and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occutred between levels in 1he hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the fowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)

at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring and non -
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unguoted financial assets measured

at fair value.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other refevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and fability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value

hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair vaiue. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
relevant notes.

Disclosures for valuation methods, significan{ estimates and assumptions of Financial instruments
{including those carried at amortised cost {(note 21) and Quantitative disclosures of fair vaiue measursment

hlerarchy (note 22).




PS Toil Road Private Limited

CiN : U45203MH2010PTC 199879
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

3.4 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized up on transfer of controi of promised services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration we expect to receive in exchange for those services.

Toll revenue

The income from tolf revenue from operations of the facility is accounted on accrua! basis.

Contract revenue {construction contracts)

Effective from April 1, 2018, the Company adopted ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”
using the cumulative calch-up transition method, applied to contracts that were not completed as at April 1,
2018. In accordance with the cumulative catch-up transition method, the comparatives have not been
retrospectively adjusted. There was no impact on adoption of Ind AS 115 in the financial statements.

Contracts revenue is recognised over time by measuling progress towards complefe satisfaction of the
performance obligation at the reporting date, measured based on the proportion of contract costs incurred
for work performed to date refative to the esfimated total contract costs, using the input method. Contract
costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred except when the costs are the
costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be used in satisfying performance obligation in

future,

Contract cost includes costs that relafe directly to the specific contract and allocated costs that are
attributable to the construction of the toll roads. Cost that cannot be aitributed to the contract aclivity such
as general administration costs are expensed as incurred and classified as other operating expenses.

The Company accounts for a confracl modification (change in the scope or price {or both}} when that is
appreved by the parties o the contract.

Where the outcome of a performance obligation cannot be reasonably measured, contract revenue is
recognised to the extent of costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation that is expected to be

recovered.

When it becomes probable that tofal contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the Company
recognizes expected iosses from contracts as an expense immediately.

Others

Interest Income on financial assets measured al amortized cost is recognised using the effective interest
rate method. .

Dividends are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss only when the right to receive payment is
established.

Accounting of intangible assets under service concession arrangement

The Company has Tofl Road Concession rights where it Builds, Operates and Transfers (BOT)
infrastructure used to provide public service for a specified period of time, These arrangements may
include Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangement for its entire useful iife.

These arrangements are accounted for based on the nature of the consideration. The intangible asset
model is used to the extent that the Company receives a right (a license) to charge users of the public
service. The financial asset model is used when the Company has an unconditional contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or at the direction of the grantor for the construction services.
When the unconditionat right to receive cash covers only part of the service, the two models are combined
to account separately for each component. If the Company performs more than one service (ie.,
construction or upgrade services and operation services) under a single contract or arrangement,
consideration received or receivable is aliocated by reference to the relative fair values of the services

delivered, when the amounts are separately identifiable.

The intangible assets is measured at the fair value of consideration transferred to acquire asset, which is

he fair value of consideration received or receivable for the construction services delivered.




PS Toll Road Private Limited
CIN : U45203MH2010PTC199879
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

3.6

Intangible assets model

Intangible assets arising out of service concession arrangements are accounted for as intangible assets
where the Company has a contractual right to charge users of service when the projects are completed.
Apart from above per the service concession agreement the Company is cobligated to pay the amount of
premium to National Highways Authority of India (NHAI). This premium obligation if any is freated as
Intangible asset as it is paid towards getting the right to earn revenue by constructing and operating the

roads during the concession period.

Hence, the total premium payable fo the Grantor as per the Service Concession Agreement is also
recognized as an ‘intangible Assets’ and the corresponding obfigalion for committed premium is

recognized as premium obligation.

The intangible assets is measured at the fair value of consideration transferred fo acquire asset, which is
the fair value of consideration received or receivable for the construction services delivered.

Amortization of concession intangible assefs

The intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on time proportion basis on
Straight Line method over the pericd of the concession. Refer note 25 for description and significant terms

of the concession agreements.

Taxes

Current Tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected {0 be recovered from or
paid to the laxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used o compute the amount gre those that are
enacted or subslantively enacled at the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and
generates taxable income. Current income tax relating to items recognized oulside the Statement of Profit
and Loss is recognized outside the Statement of Profit and t.oss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation fo the underlying fransaction either in other
comprehensive income or direclly in equity. Management periodically evaiuates positions taken in the tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax reguiations are subject to interpretation and

establishes provisions where appropriate.

Minimum Allernate Tax ('MAT') under the provisions of Income-tax Act, 1981 is recognised as current fax
in the statement of profit and foss. MAT paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic
benefits in the form of adjusiment to future income tax liability, is considered as an assel if there is a
convincing evidence that the Company will pay narmal tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in
the balance sheet when it is probable that the future economic benefit associaled with it will flow to the

Company.
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:

a)has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts: and
b)intends either te settfe on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liabitity simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred fax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and fiabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting

date.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognized for all taxable temporary differences

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused fax fosses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
wiil be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax

fosses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow ali or part of the deferred
1@y asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
'fggiggtxized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will aliow the deferred tax,




PS Toll Road Private Limited

CiN

: U45203MH2010PTC 199879

Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.1

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to appiy in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is seitied, based on tax rates {and tax faws} that have been

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized ouiside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized outside
the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred fax iferns
are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assels against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate fo the same taxable entity and

the same taxation authority,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable fo the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of he cost of the asset. All other horrowing costs are exponsged in the peried in which they occur.
Boriowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an enlity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the

borrowing costs,
Leases

Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in the income statement on a straight
fine basis over the lease term.

Contingent liabilities and contingent Assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past evenis whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the contro} of the
Company or a present cbligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outfiow of
resources wilt be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liabifity alsc arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot be measured refiably. The contingent
lizbifity is not recognised in the books of accounts but its existence is disclosed in the Financial
Statements. A Contingent asset is not recognized in financial statements, however, the same are disclosed

where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets are lested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying ameunt may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the
assel’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
assel’s fair value fess costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for passible reversal of the impairment at the end of

each reporting periad.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legaf or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits wili be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the cbligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense refating to a provision is
presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

i the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the ligbifity. When discounting is used, the increase in
3h_g;p1f;gvision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.




PS Toll Road Private Limited
CiN : U45203MH2010PTC199879
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023

3.12 Employee benefits

(i} Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and safaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholiy
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees’ sefvices up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settied. The liabilities are presented as current

employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet.
(i} Leave obligations
The Company provides sick leave and privilege feave 1o ifs employees.

Privilege and sick leave obligation is provided based on actuarial valuation which takes into account
the estimated portion of feave that wili be en-cashed, availed and the portion that will lapse, The
portion that is expected to be en-cashed is provided for based on the basic salary of {he employee
and for the portion that is expected to be availed, the valuations are based on the employess’ total
compensation. The fiabiiity for earned leave is also classified as current where it is expected to be
availed! en-cashed during the next 12 months. The remaining portion is classified as non-current. The
ameunts of current and non-current liability are based on actuarial estimates.

(i} Post - employment obligations

The Company operates various post-employment schemes, including
(a} defined benefit plans such as gratuity
(b) defined contribution pians such as provident fund.

Gratuity Obligations

The liability or asset recognized in the balance shest in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is
the present value of the defined henefit obtigation at the end of the reparting period less the fair
vaiue of plan assels. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries

using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

The nel interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net halance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense

in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in aciuarial
assumptions are recognized in the period in which they occur, directly in ofher comprehensive
income. They are included in refained earnings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the

batance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curlallments are recognized immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined Contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined confribution plans and the contributions ar
recognized as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognize.
as an assel to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

3.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shortterm
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

}';‘@{ the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
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deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding hank overdrafis as they are considered an integral part of

the Company's cash management.

3.14 Financial instruments

A financia! instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financia liabiiity

or equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initizlly at fair value, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through Statement of Profit and Loss, net of directly attributable transaction cost to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market ptace (regular way irades) are recognised on the
trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in foliowing categories:

* at amortised cost
*  atfair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
= atfair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCIH)

Financial Assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are measured at the amortised cost if both the foliowing conditions are met;

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual

cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of

principal and interest (SPP}) on the principal amount cutstanding.

This category is the most relevant fo the Company. All the Loans and other receivables under financial
assets (except Investments) are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that

are not quoted in an active market.

After initial measurement such financia! assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
Effective Interest Rate (FiIR) method. Amortised cost is calcutated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an irtegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This category generally appiies fo loans and other

receivables.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive Income

Alf investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company has investment in mutuat
funds which are held for trading, are classified as at FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an
Instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an instrument as at FVTOCI, then ali fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income. There is no recycling
of the amounts from Other Comprehensive income (OC to the Statement of Profit and Lass, even on sale
of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumutative gain or loss within equity. instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of the Company's similar financjgs »
assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. remaved from the Company's balance sheet) when;

The rights {0 receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights fo receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligatioh:
do pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through'
drrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially aff the risks and rewards of the
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asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantiaily ail the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor refained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor fransferred control of the asset, the Company continues fo recognize the transferred asset 1o the
extent of the Company's continuing involvement. in that case, the Company also recognizes an assaciated
liability, The transferred asset and the associated iiability are measured on a basis that reflects the righis

and obligations that the Company has retained.
Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

The Company has three types of financial assels subject to ind AS 109's expected credil loss modet:
= Loans receivables measured at amortised cost

= Retentions receivable, grant receivable from NHAI

= Loans given to employees
The impairment methodology for each class of financial assets stated above is as follows:

Loans receivables measured al amortised cost: Loans receivables at amortised cost are generally short
term in nature considered to be low risk, and thus the impairment provision is determined as 12 months

expected credit losses.

Loans given to empioyees: For loans given to employees outstanding as on the reporting dates, the has
determined reliably that assessing the probability of defauit at the initiai recognition of each and every loan
or receivable would result in undue cost and effort. As permitted by Ind AS 109, the credit provision will be
determined based on whether credit risk is low only at each reporting date, until the loan is derecognized.
Using the impairment methodology the Company has assessed that no loan loss sllowance needs 1o be

recorded in the books of accounts.

Expected credit ioss (ECL') impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is
recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is

described below:

Financial assels measured as at amorlized cost and other conlractual revenue receivables - ECL is
presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral parl of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the
Company does niot reduce impairment aliowance from the gross carnying amount.

Financial liabilities
fnitial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through Statement
of Profit and Loss, loans and borrowings, trade payables or other payables.

All financial lighilities are recognized initially at fair value.

The Company's financial Habilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts and other payables.

Subseguent measurement

Financial liabiifties at amortized cost: After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amorlized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
%he EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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3.15

3.16

Leans and horrowings

This is the category most relevant fo the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. However, the Company
has borrowings at floating rates. The impact of restatement of effective interest rate, year on year due to
reset of interest rate, Is not material. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the transaction cost amortization process.

Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabiiities if payment is due within
one year of less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presenied as

non-cufrent liabiiities.

Trade payubles are recognized nitlally at (s value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective inlerest method.

Retention money payable

This is the category most relevant to the Company. Retention moneys are measured at Fair value initially.
Subsequently, they are measured at amortised cost using the EIR {Effective interest rate} method. Gains
and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the labilities are derecognized as well as

through the EIR amortization process.
De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantiaily
different terms, or the terms of an existing fability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liabitity and the recognition of a new liab#ity.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an infention 1o
seftle on a net basis, {o realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,

Segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker (CODM}. Chief operating decision maker's function is to aliocate the resources
of the entity and access the performance of the operating segment of the entity.

The Board assesses the financial performance and position of the Company and makes strategic
decisions. It is idenfified as being the chief operating decision maker for the company.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, setdom equat the related actuaf results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are

disclosed below.

)} Applicability of service concession arrangement accounting to toll roads concessionaire
sarrangements
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The Company has determined that Appendix D of Ind AS 115 'Service concession arrangements’ is
applicable to the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for public-to-private service
concession arrangements. The Company has entered into concession arrangement with NHAI as per
which the Company would paricipate in the Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer {(DBFOT) basis
the toll roads infrastructure. After the end of the concession arrangement, the Company has lo fransfer the
infrastructure i.e. tolf roads constructed to National Highway Authorities of india (NHAL.

Accordingly the Company has recognized the intangible assets recognized as per the accounting policy
mentioned in Note no 3.5 'Accounting of intangible assets under service concessionaire arrangement’.

{#i) Income taxes

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets relating to carried forward tax losses to the extent there
are sufficient taxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation authority against which the
unused tax losses can be utilized. However, the ufilization of tax losses aiso depends on the ability of the
Campany fo satisfy certain tests at the time the losses are recouped. Management has forecasted future
taxable profits and has therefore recognized deferred tax assets in relation to tax iosses.

(i} Amortization of concession intangible assets

The Intangible asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on time proportion basis on
Straight Line method over the period of the concession.

3.17  Recent accounting pronouncements
On March 23, 2022, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs {"MCA”} has notified companies { Indian

Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, This notification has resulted into amendments in the
following existing accounting standards which are applicable to company from April 1, 2022

] Ind As 101 ~ First Time adoption of Ind AS

ity ind As 103 - Business Combination

iif} Ind As 108 — Financial instrument

iv) Ind As 16 — Property, Plant & Equipment

v) Ind As 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
vi} Ind As 41 - Agricuiture

Applications of the above standards are not expected to have any significant impact on the company's
financial statements.

Standards issued but not effective

A. Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing slandards
under Companies {indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time, On March 31, 2023,
MCA amended the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

ind AS 1- Presentation of Financial Statements —~This amendment reguires the entities to disciose their
material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. The effective date for
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April 2023.

Ind AS 8-Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors —This amendment has
introduced a definition of accounting estimates and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities
distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The effeclive date for
adoption of this amendment is annuai periods baginning on or after 1st April 2023.

Ind AS 12 — Income Taxes-This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption
so that it does not apply to fransactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 1st April 2023.

»The Company is evaluating the impact of the amendments on the financial statement.
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Note 1: Corporate information

TD Toll Road Private Limited was awarded on Buifd, Operate and Transfer {BOT} basis strengthening of
the existing carriageway from Km. 333 to Km. 421.60 on the Trichy — Dindigul section of National Highway
No. 45 in the State of Tamil Nadu and widening thereof to 4 lanes and its improvement, operation and
maintenance under the Concession Agreement dated July 19, 2007 with National Highways Authority of
India. The Concession Agreement is for a period of 30 years from January 16, 2008, being the appointed
Date stated in clause 1.1 of the said agreement. The Company has started Toli Collection with effect from

11-01-2012.

The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of Reliance (nfrastructure Limited. At the end of the Concession
period, the entire facifity will be transferred to NHAL.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on Agril 24, 2023
Pursuant to the provisions of section 130 of the Act the Central Government, income tax authorities and
other statutory regulatory body and section 131 of the Act the board of directors of the Company have
powers to amend / re-open the financial statements approved by the beard / adopted by the members of

the Company.

The Company is a private limited company incorporated and domiciled in india. The registered office of the
Company is located at at Block, 1st floor, Dhirubhai Ambani Knowledge City, Navi Mumbai 400 710.

Note 2: Basis of preparation

These Fipancial Statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. These Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and disclosures mandated by Schedule
#thof the Act, applicable Ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and regulations.

These Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value,

These Financial Statements are presented in ¥ Mililons, except where otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the fnformation and
disclosures mandated by Schedule !l fo the Act, applicable Ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and

regulations.

Note 3: Summary of Significant accounting policies

3.1

Current versus non-current classification

- The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current! non-current

classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
* Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

* Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used 10 settle 2 liability for at least

twelve months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

*  tis expected to be settled in normat operating cycle

= ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liabifity for at least tweive months after

the reporting period
Al other fabilities are classified as nen-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as ifs operating ¢ycle,

3.2 Functionat and presentation currency

ftems included in the financial statements of the company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity aperates (‘the functional currency’). The functional statements
are presented in indian Rupees (Y}, which the company’s functional and presentation currency.

3.3 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction befween market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liabifity takes place either:

* In the principal market for ihe asset or liability, or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous maikel for the asset or fiabifity

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes inta account a market participant's abflity to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in ifs highest and best use or by selling it to another markel
participant that would use the asset in ils highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing

the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and labilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as folows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted {unadjusted} market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabifities
Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the iowest leve! input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabiiities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the iowest level input that is significant 1o the fair value measurement as a whole)

at the end of each reporting period,

The Company's Management determines the policies and precedures for both recurring and non —
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured

at fair value.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabifities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value

hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the
feJevant notes.
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Note 4 - Concession Intangible assets {including intangible assets under development)

¥ Millions
. Foll Collection . Intangible assets
Particutars rights NHAI Premium under development
Year ended March 2022
Opening gross carrying amount 19,727 41 11,012.98 11,489.58
Additions - - 1,887.13
Disposals - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 19,727 .41 11,012.98 13,376.71
Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Opening accumulated amortisation and impairment 4,998.17 3,798.61 -
Amortisation charge for the year 1,080.42 534.35 -
Disposals - - -
Closing accumulated amortisation and impairment 5,088.60 4,332.95 -
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2022 13.638.81 6 680.03 13.376.71
Year ended March 2023
Opening gross carrying amount 19,727.41 11,012.98 13,376.71
Additions - - 1,067.76
Transfers 13,683.30 {13,683.30}
Disposals - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 33,410.71 11,012.98 761,18
Accumulated amaortisation and impairment
Opening accumulated amertisation and impairment 6,088.60 4,332.95 -
Amortisation charge for the year 2,110.09 494,77 -
Disposals - - .
Closing accumtiated amortisation and impairment 8,198.68 4,827.72 -
INet carrying amount as at March 31, 2023 26,212.02 6,185.26 761.18

Naote:
{a) The above Intangible Asset are pledged as security with lenders.
(b) The company has included flat at Boisar, Thane district aggregating to Rs. 0.91 millien in gross block of Tell collection rights.

(c) Intangible Assets under Development ageing T Millions
Amount in CWIP for a period of March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Less than 1 year 761.18 1,867.13
1-2 years - 2,152.75
2-3 years - 2623.94
More than 3 years - 6,712.89
Total Intangible Assets under Development 761.18 13,376.71
d) Intangible assets under development completion schedule ¥ Millions

To be completed in Amount

Less than 1 year 1,399.32

1-2 years -

2-3 years -

More than 3 years -

Tofal 1,399,32

e) All the title deeds of Immovable property are held in the name of the company
f} No proceedings has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions

(Prohibition):Act, 1988. Therefore the disclosure of details of Benami Property held is not applicable.
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Z Millions
] As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Note 5 (a) - Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- in eurrent accounts 127.84 138.18
Cash on hand 0.18 0.45
128.02 138.63
Note 5 {b) - Other financial assets - current
Retention money receivable from NHAI 43.35 76.07
Others 11.85 12.2%
Security deposits 0.43 0.43
Claims receivable from NHA! 39.32 87.05
94,95 175,76
Note & - Other non-current assets
Capital Advance - 470.35
- 470,35
Note 7 - Other Current assets
Advance to vendors 68.63 144.96
Less: Expected Credit Loss (8.35) (6.28)
60.28 138.68
Advance to employees 2.22 2.36
Prepaid Expenses 23.83 19.67
- 548

Duties and taxes receivable
Gratuity Advance

4.25 -

90.58 166.18
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Note 8 - Share Capital

Particulars Nos of Shares

Note 8a - Authorised Equity Share Capital

At the beginning of the period 1,00,000

Add | Increase during the period of 10 each

At the end of the period

Note 8D - Issued, subscribed and paid-up equity

share capital

At the beginning of the period 10,724
of 10 each

Add : Increase during the period
At the end of the period

Note 8c - Terms and rights attached to equity shares

% Millions

As at

March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00
.11 .11
0.1 0.11

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as Equity Shares having a Par Value of Rs.10/-. in the event of liguidation of the
company, the holders of equily shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferentiaf
amounis. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Note 8d - Reconciliation of nos of Shares

Nos of Shares at the beginning of the peried 10,724 10,724
Add : Nos of Shares issued during the period - -
Nos of Shares at the end of the period 10,724 10,724
Note Be - Shares held by the holding company or their
subsidiariesfassociates
Reliance Infrastructure Limited (Holding Company) & its nominees 10,724 7,936
Jiangsu Provincial Transportation Engineering Group Co, Lid . 2,788
Note 8f - Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Reliance infrastructure Limited (Holding Company) & its nominees
Nos of Shares 10,724 7,936
% of holding 100% 74%
Jiangsu Provincial Transportation Engineering Group Co,Ltd
Nos of Shares - 2,788
% of hoiding 0% 26%
Nofe 8g - Details of Shares Pledged / safekeep & unpledged by promoters

] As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Pledged Shares 10,723 7,935
Safekeep . -
Unpledged - 2,788
Total 10,723 10,723
Note &h - Betails of Shares held by promoters
Promoter Name No. Of Shares % of Shares % Change
Reliance Infrasfructure Limited 10,724 100.00% 26%
Fota S 10,724 —=
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Note 9 - Sub-ordinated debt (in nature of equity)

¥ Millions
Particut As at As at
articiiars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Note 9a - Sub-ordinated debt {in nature of equity)
Al the beginning of the period 10,785.11 10,785.11
Increase / (decrease) during the period - -
At the end of the period 10,785.11 10,785.11
Note 9a(i) - Sub-ordinated debt infused by holidng company
10,785.11 10,785.11

Reliance Infrastructure Limited {Holding Company}

Terms and rights attached to Sub-ordinated debts infused by holding company.
i} Subordinated debt is the part of Equity from the promoters of the company for the project, which is unsecured

and interest free as per Common Loan Agreement with the lenders:
i) No repayment/redemptionfinterest servicing allowed during the moratorium period of the long term project

Note 9b- Other Equity - Reserves & Surplus

¥ Millions
Particut As at As at
aricirars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Corporate Guarantee (in nalUre of equity) 105.10 105.10
Retained Earnings (4,143.06) (1,787.05)
{4,037.96} (1,681.95)
Other Equity
Note 8(b){i) - Corporate Guarantee (in nature of equity)
At the beginning of the period 105.10 105.10
Increase / (decrease) during the period - -
At the end of the period 105.10 105.10
Note 9(b)(ii} - Retained Earnings
At the beginning of the period {1,787.05) 71.65
(2,360.27) (1,856.62)

Net Loss for the period

[tems of other comprehensive income recognised

directly in retained earnings
- Remeasuremens of post-employements 4.26 {2.08)

obligations (net of tax)

At the end of the period (4,143.06) {1,787.05}
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Note 10 (a) - Borrowings - Non current Z Milllans

A5 al Asat
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Particulars

Secured,

Term loans

From banks
Term Loan from Banks 4.893.22 5,323.83

From financiat institutions
Term Loan from Financial Institution 1,735.54 1.861.38
Unsecured
{unsecured, interest free)
Loan from releled paries (refer note 28}

6,628.86 7,185.21

Total

1) Secured Term Loan from Banks & Financial Institutions of Rs, 7,627.46 million (Principal undiscounted amount) are secured as under:

(it Morigage, by way of firsl charge on all the company's immavabie properties, tangible movable properties including plant &nd machinery, machinery
spares, lools and accessories, vehicles and alf other movable assels, both present and future, save and except the projec! assels,
{iiy A first charge over all the accounts of the company's including the escrow accounts and sub acoounls {or any accaunt in substitution thereof) thal may be

openead in accordance with his agreement, escrow agreement and the supplamentary escrow agreement,
{iii} A first charge on all the company's intangible assets bul nol limiled to goodwill, rights, undertaking and uncalled capitat present and future excepl the

project assels.

liv} A firsl charge/assignment by way of the securily in right, title, interests, benelits, claims and demands of the company in project documents, under all
Government approvals, any letter of credit, guarantees including contracter guarantees and liquidated damages and performance bond provided by any

party 1o the Froject Documents,
(v} A firsl chargefassignment by way of the security in right, title, interests, benelils, claims and dermands of the campany wnder all Insurance contracts,

(vi) Pledged by he promoters is 100% (10,723 no. of shares) of the fully paid up capital of the company to the consertium Lenders.
Vi) The interest is payable monihly as per lhe applicable Interest ralas.

Viii} Filing of the quarterly relumns or statements of current assets is not applicable to the company.

ix) None of the Banks / FIi / other lenders has declared the company as wiifll defaulter in accordance wilh

Hence witful defaulter disclosure is nol applicable
x} No charges or satisfaction is pending to be regislered wilh ROGC beyond the statutory periad,

guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by RBI.

2) The hofding Company has provided Corporate Guarantee for company in fornt and manner satisfaciory {o the lerders as per Common Loan Agreement.

3} The applicable inlerest rate for Rupee term L ¢an varies from 10.25 % to 12.45% p.a
4) Bus to {he oulbreak of COVID-19, the Resarve Bank of India has granted reliaf to borrowers by way of moratorium of interest and principal instalments
faliing due to Indian banks and financial inslitutions till Aug 2020. The company avaited the moratorium and netified ail consontium lenders,

5) The canying amounls of assels pledged as security for current and non-cusrant borrowings are considered in Note no. 35

6) Malurity Profite of Secured loan from others { Principal undiscounted) is as under: ¥ Millions

Loan from Financia

Particulars Loan frem Banks Institutions

FY 2023.24 656,15 185.75
FY 2024-25 6B7.18 115.06
FY 2025-26 821.83 152,56
FY 2026-27 105533 198,06
FY 2027-28 onwards 2.283.73 1,270.72
Total £,604.32 1,923.14

Ga) The company has delayed in the repayment of principal & interest to the Banks & financial institution due to which the fenders have classified the
account as Non Performing Assets (NPA). However, the classification as Current & Non Current is based on the contracted repayment schedule.
6b} The company has delayed in the repayment of principal & inerast to the Banks & financial institution which were patd on or before batance sheet dats,

The lender wise details is as below :

¥ Millions
Borrowings tnterest
Name of Lender Amount Period Armount Period
{Maximum days) {(Maximum days}
AXIS BANK 79.26 145 213.35 145
IDFC BANK 70,16 145 211,04 145
State Bank of India 2072 145 54.75 145
| HFCL 5817 145 169.21 145




&c} The company has delayed in the repayment of principal & Interest to the Banks & financial instilution which were not paid on or before balance sheet

date. The lender wise details is as below

Z Millions
Borrowings Interest
Name of Lender Amount Period Amount Period
{Maximum days) {Maximum days)
AXIS BANK 97.10 547 137.27 388
IDFC BANK 86.07 a47 138.08 386
State Bank of India 2433 547 4877 396
I-Ci. 7131 547 111.64 398
As per confirmation received from respective lenders, penal interest & additional interest charged by lenders has been accounted for as on March 31, 2023
by the company.
T Millions
‘ Ag at ASET
Particutars March 31, 2023 March 21, 2022

Note 10 {b) - Borrowings - Current

Secured

Currenl Maturities of Long Term Debt frefer note 10 {a) (1) & (3)]

Term Loan from Banks
Term Loan fram Financial Institution

Unggeored.

{unsecured, repayable on demand and interest free}

Loan from related parties {refer note 26)

Particulars

Note 11 - Trade Payables

Tolal cutstanding dlies of Micro & Small Enterprises

656.15 375,18
185.75 129.47
755.00 319.00
1,595,80 B23.67
2 Miltions

As at As at

Marchk 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Total outstanding dues of craditors other then Micro & Small Enterprises 37711 431.52
EYFER 431,52

{(a} Frade Payables ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2023 ¥ Millions

Particulars Outstanding for below periods from date of transaction
Less than 1 Year|1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years |Total

1) MSME -

2) Others 218.62 17.02 14.27 8. 287.92

3) Disputed Dues - MSME - “ - - -

4} Disputed Dues - Others - - - - -

8) Unbilled Dues 89.19 - - - 82.19

Total 307.81 17.02 14.27 38,01 37711

As at March 31, 2022 Z Millions

Particulars Dutstanding for below pericds from date of transaction
Less than 1 Year [1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years {Total

1) MEME - - - - -

2} Others 12477 37.68 ¥5.30 134.19 371.94

3) Disputed Dues - MSME - - - - -

4) Disputed Dues - Others - - - - -

5) Unbifled Dues ~ - - - 58,58

Total 12477 37.68 7530 134.19 431.52

(b) Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises

Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enferprise Development Act, 2006" is based on the information available
with the Company regarding the status of registration of stch vendors under the sald Acl, as per the intimation received from them on requests made by the
company. There are no overdue principal amourtsfinterest payable amounls for delayed payments to such vendors at the Batance Sheet date. There are
no delays in payment made to such suppliers during the year or for any earlier ysars and accordingly there is no interest paid or outstanding interest in this
regard in respect of payments made during the year or brought forward from previous years.




Particulars

Note 12 {a) - Other firancial liahijlities - current

¥ Millians

A5l
March 31, 2023

A8 at
March 31, 2022

NHAI Premium Payable (incl. Inlerest) 4,475.49 3,579.95
Interest Accured and due 436.73 530.86
Creditors for Capital expenditure 119.47 952,73
Employee benfits payable 14.16 20.09
Retenlion maney payable 201.43 186.82
5,247 28 5 279.45
Foot Note:
* Retention Payables ageing schedule
As af March 31, 2023 % Millions
Outstanding for below periods from date of transaction
Total
Particulars Less than 1 Year |1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years ofa
1) Retention monay payable 8224 34.64 15.00 69.55 201,42
Total 82.24 34.64 15.08 89.66 201.43
As at March 31, 2022 ¥ Millions
Ouistanding for below periods from date of transaction T
|
Particulars Less than 1 Year |1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years ota
1) Retention money payable 2.75 3.13 13.15 167.79 186.82
Total 2.75 3.13 13.15 167.79 186.82
Note 12 (b} - Other financial liabilities - Nor - current
Non - Current
NHAI Prentivm Payatte 1,742.07 11,846.98
11,742.07 1,646.98
Note 13 (a} - Provisions - Current
Current
Provision for employee benefils
- Gralufly - 023
- Leave encashment 0.04 008
0.04 .33
Note 13 {b) - Provisions - Non - Gurrent
Provision for employee benefits
- Gratuily - .
- Leave encashmant 0.186 027
thers
- Resurfacing expenses 187.33 -
187.48 0.27
Movement in Provisions
Resurfacing expenses
At the beginning of the year . -
Charged { {credited) to profit or loss
Provision made during the year 210.87 -
Unwinding of discount . _
Amount utilised during the year {23.54) -
At the end of the year 187.33 -
Note 14 - Other cureent liabilities
Duties and taxes payable 5.76 14.86
5.76 14,86




PS Toll Road Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements as of and for year ended March 31, 2023

T Millions

Particulars

Year ended
March 31, 2023

Year ended
tMarch 31, 2022

MNote 15 ~ Revenue

Operating income
- Canstruction income
- Income from toll collections

Note 16 - Other income

Interest income

- Others

Excess provision for Whritten back
Insurance claim received
Miscellaneous income

Note 17 - Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses

Subcontracting expenses
Maintaingnce of Roads
Electricity expenses

Handling Charges

Site and other direct expenses

Note 18 - Employee benefits expenses

Salaries wages and bonus

Contribution to provident funds and other funds
Gratuity

Leave encashment

Staff welfare expenses

Note 19 - Finance Costs

Interest on loan
Interest unwinding on premium deferment

Other finance charges

Note 20 - Other expenses

Rent

Rates & taxes

insurance

Legat and Professionat Charges
Auditors Remuneration

- Audit Fees

Travelling and Conveyance
Expecied Credit Loss

Other miscellanecus expenses;

1,051.41 1,354.23
4,078.91 2,981.43
5,130.32 4,335.66
1.00 2.64

2213 -
- 16.42

2.93 -
26.06 12.06
126.38 142.32
6§50.30 828.82
65.41 43.80
- 0.23
B.16 2.42
850,25 1.017.39
42.27 42.68
2.15 2.24
1.01 0.67
0.16 0.67
1.32 0.70
46.91 46,96
964.85 712.08
1,616.65 1,2584.74
278.16 11112
2,859.66 2,077.95
-1A42 1.33
8.57 0.42
46.98 61.38
55.86 42.45
0.30 0.24
0.46 0.49
207 6.28
4,91 4.00

120.27 116.60°




PS Toil Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for year ended March 31, 2023

Note 21 - Fair value measurements
Financial Instruments by category

Signficance of financial instruments
Z Miltions

Particuiars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Financial assets
At amortised Cost

Others 11.85 12.21
Retention Money receivable from NHAI 43.35 76.07
Cash and Cash equivalent 128.02 138.63
Security Deposits 0.43 0.43
Claims receivable from NHA! 39.32 87.05
Total financial assets 222,97 314.39

Financial liabilities

At amortised Cost

Borrowings 8,225.77 §,008.88
Trade Payables 3771 431.52
Retention money payable 201.43 186.82
NHAI! Premium Payable 16,217.56 15,426.94
interest Accured and due 436.73 530.86
Employee Benefits Payable 14.16 20,08
Creditors for capital expenditure 119.47 982.73
Tofal financial liabillties 25,592.23 25 566.83

{b} Fair value of financial assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost Z Milliens

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2023

As at
March 31, 2022

Financial liabilities

Carrying value of financial liabilities at amortised cost

Floating rate borrowings 7,470.77 7,689.88
Retention money 201.43 186.82
NHAI! Premium Payahle 16,217.56 15,426.84

23,889.76 23,303.63

Fair vaiue of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost

Fioating rate botrowings 7,470.77 7,680.88
Retentior: money 201.43 186.82
NHAJ Premium Payable 16,217.56 15,426.94

23,889.76 23,303.63

The carrying value amounts of fixed deposits, interest accrued on deposits, retention money receivabie,
insurance claim receivable, cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, interest accrued, employee benefits
payable and creditors for capital expenditure approximate their fair value due to their short term nature.

For financial assets .and liabilities that are measured at fair vaiue, the carrying amounts are equat to the fair
values. ' o




PS5 Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for year ended March 31, 2023

Note 22 - Fair value Hierarchy

F Millions
] AS at ASTE
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Financlal assets

(a) Fair value hierarchy - Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are
disclosed

Financial liabifities
Level 3

Fleating Rate Borrowings 7,470.77 7.689.88
Retention money payable 201,43 186.82
NHAI Premium Payable 16,217.56 15,426.94
Total financial liabilifies 23,889.76 23,303.63

Recognised fair value measurementis
Level 1: Level 1 hierarchy includes financia! instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market {for example, overthe-counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation technigues which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as lite as
possibie on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the

instrument is included in level 2.

Levet 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in fevel 3.
This is the case for borrowings, debeniures, Retention money payabie and hedging derivative included in ievet 3

Valuation technigue used to determine fair vafue
Specific valuation techniques used to vaiue financial instruments include:

» the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments
« the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and principal swap is determined using forward exchange rates at the

halance sheet date
« the fair vaiue of the remaining financial instruments is determined using discounted cash flow analysis.




PS Tell Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for year ended March 31, 2023

Liquidhity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obligations
without incurring unacceptable fosses. The Company objective is to, at ali times maintain optimum levels of liguidity to
meet its cash and collateral requirements. The Company closely monitors its ifquidity position and deploys a robust
cash management system. it maintains adequate sources of financing including debt from banks at an optimized cost,
The liquidity risk is managed on the basis of expected maturity dates of the financial liabilities. The average credit
period taken to seitle frade payables is about 30 to B0 days. The carrying amounts are assumed to be a reasonable
approximation of fair value. The following table analyses financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities.

The table beiow analyses the company's non-derivative financial liabiiittes and net-settled derivative financiat liabilities
into refevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity
date. Derivative financia! liabilities are included in the analysis if their contractual maturities are essential for an
understanding of the timing of the cash flows. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted

cash flows.

2 Milions
As at March 31, 2023 l.ess than 1 year More than 1 year Total
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 841.90 6,628.86 7,470.77
Interest on Borrowings 1,266.80 2,998.55 4,263.35
Trade and other payabies 37711 - 377.11
Other financial liabilities 4,810.55 11,742.07 16,552.62
Total nen-derivatives 7.296.35 21,367.49 28,663.84
As at March 31, 2022 Less than 1 year More than 1 year Total
Non-derivatives
Berrowings 504 67 725117 7,755.83
Interest on Borrowings 1,369.92 2,996.55 4,366 48
Trade and other payables 431.52 - 431.52
Other financial liabitities 4,739.58 11,846.98 16,586.58
Total non-derivatives 7,045.70 22,094,71 29,140.41




PS Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for year ended March 31, 2023

Note 23 -~ Financial risk management
The company activities exposes it fo market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.
This note explains the source of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity is manage the risk.

Risk Exposure arising Measurement Management
from
Credit risk Cash and cash Aging analysis Diversification of
eguivalents, trade Credit ratings bank deposits,
receivables, financial credit limits and
assets measured at letters of credit

amortised cost.

Market fisk — interest rate Long-term borrowings  Sensitivity analysis  Actively Managed

af variable
Rates

Liguidity risk Borrowings and other Rolling cash flow  Availabiity of
liabilities forecasts committed credit

lines and

borrowing facilities
The company’s risk management is carried cut by a project finance team and central treasury team under policies approved by
board of directors. Company treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risk in close co-operation with the group's
operating units. The Management of the company provides writlen principles for overall risk management, as weil as policies
covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk and credit risk, use of derivative financial instrument and non-derivative

financial instrument, and investments of excess liquidity.

Commodity risk:

The company requires for implementation (construction, operation and maintenance) of the projects, such as cement, bitumen,
steel and other construction materials. For which, the company entered into fixed price contract with the EPC contractor and
Q&M Contractor s0 as to manage our exposure 1o price increases in raw materials., Hence, the sensitivity analysis is not

required.

Market risk — interest rate risk

The Bank loans follows floating rates with resets defined under agreements, While interest rate fluctuations carry a risk on
financiats, the company earn toll income which is linked to WP thus providing & natural hedge to the interest rate risk.

a} interest rate risk exposure

¢ Miliiens
Particul As at As at
articutars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Variable Rate Borrowings T.470.77 7.682.88
Fixed Rate Borrowings - -
Total 7.470.77 7,689.88

b) Sensifivity analysis
Profit or ioss is sensilive to higherflower interest expense from berrowings as a result of changes in inferest rates.

. As at As at
Impact on profitfloss after tax March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Interest rates {(increase) by 100 basis points {63.05) {64.90)
interest rates decrease by 100 basis pojnis: 63.05 64.90




P& Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for year ended March 31, 2023

Note 24 - Capital risk management

The company objectives when managing capital are o
safeguard their ability to continue as a geing concern, so that they can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

. Maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

For the purpose of the company capital management, capilal includes issued eguity capital, share premium, sub-
debts and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the
company capital management is to maximize the shareholder value.

The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic cenditions and
the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the
dividend payment to sharehoiders, return capital o shareholders or issue interest free sub-ordinate debt. The
company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The company
policy Is to keep optimum gearing ratic. The company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings,

trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

In order to achieve this overall objective, the company capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that
it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing foans and borrowings that define capital structure
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital for year ended

March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

Consistent with others in the industry, the group monitors capital on the basis of the following gearing ratio:
Net debt including total borrowings (net of cash and cash equivalents)

divided by
Total "equity’ {as shown in the batance sheet).
¥ Miltions
. As at As at
Particutars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net debt (a} 8,097.75 7.870.25
Equity {b) 6,747.26 $,103.27
Net debt to equity ratio {a) / () 1.20 (.86
Z Millions
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Net debt {a) 8,097.75 7.870.25
Equity (b) 6,747.26 9,103.27
Nebt debt pius Equity (¢ = a+h) 14,845.01 16,973.52
0.55 0.46

Gearing ratio {a}/ c
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Note 25-Co en arrang ts - Main foatures

2 Miltions

Significant terms of the
arrangement

Name of entity Description of the arrangemeny

Intangible Assets
Gross book Net book value

valug

Financial Asset

PS Toll Road Private Limited| Financing, design, building and | Period of concession: 2010 - 2034
operation of 137 kilometre tong six
lane tolt road between Pune and

Salara on National Highway 4

Remuneration : Toll
Invesiment grant from concession
grantor : il

fnfrastructure return al the end of
concession period ; Yes

March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2023

45,184.66 232,168.46

March 31, 2023

fnvestment and renewal obligalions
it

Re-pricing dates : Yearly

Basis upon which re-pricing or re-
negotiation is determined | inflation
Pramium payabia to grantor ; Yes

March 31, 2022 | March 21, 2022

44 117 .08 33.695.53

March 31, 2022




PS Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for year ended March 31, 2023

Note 26 - Related Party Schedule

As per Ind AS-24 " Related Party Disclosure" the Company’s related parties and trasnsactions with them in the
ordinary course of business are disclosed below :

{A) Holding Company
Reliance Infrastructure Limited

(B} Investing Party
Jiangsu Provincial Transportation Engineering Group Co.Ltd (till 14/11/2022)

Key Management Personne{

Madan Pendse - Director

Trina Subimai Das - Direclor

Sandeep Joshi - Director (appeointed w.e f. 26/04/2022)
Rajesh Das - Director (resigned w.e.f. 26/04/2022)

Details of transactions and closing balance :

¥ Millions

Pariiculars arc ) Malch 37, 2022
Transactions during the year :-
Inter-corporate deposit
Reliance infrastructure Limited 436.00
Balances at the year end :-
inter-corporate deposit
Reliance Infrastructure Limited (Current) 755.00 319.00
Trade payable
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 87.61 87.61
Sub-debts {in nature of equity)
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 10,785.11 10,785.11
Equity share capital (excluding premium)
Reliance infrastruciure Limited 0.1 0.08
Jiangsu Provincial Transportation Engineering Group Co.Ltd - 0.03
Gurantees issued on behalf of the company

7,907.50 8,295.59

Reliance Infrastructure Limited

(C} Key Management Personnel (KMP) and details of transactions with KVP :
During the year no payment was made {0 Key Management Personnel ( KMP}




PS ToH Road Pvt Ltd
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for year ended March 31, 2023

Note 27 -Gratuity and other post-empioyment benefit plans
a) Defined contribution plan

The following amount recognized as an expense in Statement of profit and loss on account of provident fund and other funds. There are no
olher obligations ofher han the contribution payable to the respeclive aulhorilies.

¥ Millions
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Conlribution 1o provident fund and other funds 2.15 2.52
2.1% 2.52

Total

a} Defined benefit plan
The company Group has & defined benefit plan (Gratuity) for its employees. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act,

1972, Under the Act, employee who has completed five years of service is enfified to specific benefit. The fevel of benefits provided
depends on the member's length of service and sakary at refirement age. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service
gels & gratuily on departure a1 16 days salary (fast drawn salary) for each complated year of service as per the provision of the Payment of
Gratuity Act, 1872 with fotal ceifing on graluity of Re.1,000,000/-, The said gratuity plan is funded.

The following tables summaries the The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the moverents in the nel defined benefil obligation

over the year are as follows:

Change in the Present Vatue of Projected Benefit Obligation Mo ct?saitzozs M cr‘f‘gft -
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the Beginning of the Perlod 13.14 9.90
interest cost 0.74 0.55
Current service cosl 0.99 0.79
{Benefit Paid Directly by the Employer) {1.24) {0.32)
Actuarial (Gains)Losses on Obligations - Pue to Change in Demographic Assumplions 0.11 {0.01)
Aclugriat (Gainsytosses on Gbligations - Due to Change in Financial Assumptions {0.59} 1.19
Actuarial {Gains)/Losses on Oblipations - Due 1o Experience {3.62) 1.03
Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the End of the Perlod 9.53 13.14
Change in the Fair Valie of Flan Assets Marcs;:‘tmzs Mard??if.tmzz
Fair Vatue of Plan Assets at the Beginning of the Periog 12.828 12.09
Interest Income .73 0.67
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding interest Income 0.16 013
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the End of the Period 13.78 12,89
Amount Recognized in the Balance Shiget Marc:ssf,tzoza Mam:;itzozz
(Present Value of Benefit Obligation at the end of the Peded) {9.53) {16.38)
Fair Valie of Plan Assets at the end of the Period 12.8% 12.89
Funded Status (Surplus/ (Deficil)) 4,25 {0.25}
Net (Liability)/Asset Recognized in the Balance Sheet 4.25 (0.25)
Provisions
Current 4.25 {0.25)
Mon-current - -
As at As at

Particutars

March 31, 2023

Mareh 31, 2022

Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit and t.oss

Currenl service ¢ost 0.99 6,78
Net Interest Cost .01 {0.12}
Expenses Recoonlsed 1.1 0.67
Incomei(Exprenses) Recognised in Other Comprehensive Incoma {OCT)

Actuarial {Gains)/Losses on Obfigation For the Period (4.10) 2.3
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Inlerast Income -(0.16) (0.13)
Change in Asset Ceiling - -
Amount recognized in OCI {4.26) 2.08




Major Categories of plan asses as a percentage of total
Insurer Managed Funds

100%

100%

The lable below shows the expected cash fiow profile of the benefits to be paid fo the current membership of the plan based on past service

of the employees as at the valuation date;

Maturity Analysis of Project Beneflt Obtigation

Maorialily Rale During Employment

Morlality Rate After Employment

Indian Assired Lives
Maortality {2012-14}
Urban

NA,

Within the next 12 months (nex! annual reporting period) 1.77 253
Between 2 and 5 years 31 7.46
Between 6 and 10 years 3.8% 4.29
Beyond 10 years 1.58 210
Total expected payments 12.87 16.37
The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting
period 4 years 4 years
: As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2623 March 31, 2022
Starting Period 01-Apr-21 Ot-Apr-21
- Dale of Reporting 3t-Mar-22 31-Mar-22
Period of Raporting 42 Months 12 Months
Assumptions
Expected Redun on Plan Assets 5.56% 5.58%
Rate of Discounting 5.56% 5.58%
Rate of Salary Increase 8.00% 5.(0%
Rate of Employee Turnover 22.00% p.a. for 2ll  20.00% p.a. for ali
service qroups.  service groups.

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2006-08)
Ultimale
N.A.

A guantitative analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Particulars

As at
Mazrch 31, 2023

Asg at
March 31, 2022

Assumptions -Discount rate

Sansilivity Leve! 100 bp 100 &p
Imipact on defined benefit obligation + in % increase -3.38% -2.85%
impact on delined benefit obligation - in % degrease 3.64% 2 BBY
Assumptions -Future safary increases
Sensifivity Level 100 bp 100 bp
Impacl on defined benafit obligation + in % increase 3.58% 2¥7%
Impact on defined benefit obiigation - in % decrease «3.39% -2.62%
Plan Assets Camposition

. As af As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Non Guoted
*Insurer Managed Funds 13.78 12.89

13,78 12.89
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Note 28 - Earnings per share

Z Millions
. Year ended Year ended

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Profit/ Loss attributable to equity shareholders (Rs Millions) (A) {2,360.27) {1,856.62)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic and diluted earnings per share 10,724 10,724
(B}
Earnings / (l.oss) per share (Basic and diluted) (Rupees) (U/B) {2,20,092.06) (1,73,127.66}
Nominal value of equity shares (Rupees) 10.00 10.00

Note 29 - Contingent liabilities g Miliions
. As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1) Ciaims against the company not acknowledge as debts and under litigation

- income Tax Claims 175.38 -

7) The indirect tax authorities during an investigation in Financial Year 2016 stated that the Company was not eligibie to
avail CENVAT credil as there was no oufpul service liable to tax. The department issued an order in April 2016 demanding
interest on the CENVAT credit availed for period October 2010 to March 2012 and penalty on account of wilful suppression
of facts. The Company has appealed against such order before the Tax Appeilate Tribunal. The tribunal has set aside the
said adjudication order against which department has now gone in appeal before the Hon'ble High Court of Mumbai,

3) FASTag Penalty : -The company has been collecting penally from the users for using FASTag lanes without valid
FASTag, the same has been considered as part of income of the company since the company is of the view that the same
is not payable to NHAI nolwithstanding the demands from NHAI. The aggregate amount of penalty collected and
appropriated under Income for March 31, 2023 is Rs. 71.70 Mn (March 31, 2022 Rs.93.86 Mn)

4) Independent Engineers / NHAI have issued varicus communication to the company purportedly towards default in
meeting the maintenance obligation, pending punch list work / De scope of the company and consequential penally on
account of the same. The company has contested the same and hence no effect of the same is considered necessary in

the financial statements.

5) There are numerous interpretative issues relating to the Supreme Court (SC} judgement dated February 28th, 2012 on
Provident Fund (PF) on the inclusion of aifowances for the purpose of PF contribution as well as its applicability of effective
date. The Company has evaluating and there is no material impact on its financial statement. The Company, in respect of
the ahove mentioned Contingent Liabilities has assessed that it is only possible but not probable that cutffow of economic

resources wilt be required,

8) NHAI issued suspension notice on February 14, 2023 initially and the same was withheld vide its email dated February
15, 2023. Thereafler vide tetter dated February 17, 2023 the same was withdrawn. However apprehending suspension, the
company approacheed DHC under section 8 of Arbitration and Conciliation Act, 1996 and obtained status guo order, As the
Arbitral Tribunal was already constituted, the said matter was dismissed by DHC.




Note 29a - Note on Arbitration

"EPC Coniractor has raised claims against the Company under the provisions of the EPC Agreement which primarily arose
due to events attributed to NHAI. The claims were scrutinized by the Company and after due defiberations, it is agreed
between the Company and the EPC Contractor that the claims shall be referred to NHA! for consideration. Accordingly the
Company along with its claims submitted the claims of the EPC Contractor fo NHAI for consideration. The Company has
accordingly issued Notice of Dispute for resolving the Disputes in accordance with Clause 44.2 of the CA which inter alia,
includes concifiation. As NHAI has not responded to the said request within the stipulated time, the Company issued Notice
invoking arbitration and referred the Disputes/claims to arbitration. The EPC Contractor has agreed to await the outcome
of the Arbitration proceedings before pursuing any further action on the matter. it is agreed between the Company and the
EPC Contractor that tili such time the Arbitration between Company and NHA! is concluded, no rights of the EPC
Contractor with regard to Limitation on the claims will be affected. The Company wil! update the EPC Contractor with regard

to the status of Arbitration process with NHAL

The Claims referred to NHA) by the Company, which have now become a matter of Dispute under the Concession
Agreement inter alia inciude proiongation cost claims ofRs. 18,963.04 miltion which also includes the claim of the EPC

Contractor amounting 1o Rs. 18,197.2% million.

In addition, the EPC contractor also submitted the claim for CIL for an amount of Rs. 2.081.10 million. Accordingly, the
Company also submitted the Change in law claim to the IE/NMAI for reimbursement and the same is under review with
NHAL if there is no settlements / reimbursement from the NHAI, the matter will be referred as a dispute and the Company
will submit the claim aiong with other claims entitled according to the Provisions in the Concession Agreement,

Note 30 Capital Commitments and other commitments T Millions
. As at F.Y
Particuiars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Estimated value of capital contract remaining
1o be executed for construction of toll read 1,398.32 1,012.45
1,399.32 1,012.45

Note 31 - Segment Reporting
The Company Is engaged in "Road Infrastructure Projects” which in the context of Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment” is
considered as the only segment. The Company's activities are restricted within India and hence, no separate geographical

segment disclosure is considered necessary.

Note 32- Events after reporting period
There are no subsequent event after the reporting year which required adjustments to the Financial Statements.

Note 33- Foreign currency Exposure
The Company does not have any exposure in the foreign currency.




PS Toit Road Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements as of and for year ended March 31, 2023

Note 34 : Assets pledged as security

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

¥ Miilions

March 31, 2022

Particulars Note March 31, 2023
Turrent
Financial assets
First charge
Cash and cash equivalents 5a 128.02 138.63
Other Financial Assets 5h 94,95 175.76
Non-financial assets
First charge
Gther Current Assets 7 90.58 166,18
Total current assets pledged as security 313.55 480.67
Non-current
First charge
Intangible Asset 4 31,397.28 20,318.84
Other non current assets &} - 470.35
Total non-current assets pledged as security 31,397.28 20,789.19
Total assets pledged as security 31,710.83 21,269.76
Note 35 - Auditor Remunerafion
F Millions
AEEt As al
Particulars March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Audit Fees .30 0.24
Total 0.30 (.24
Note 36 : Disclosure pursuant to para 44 A to 44 E of ind AS 7 -Cash tlow Statermnents
Z Milliens
| Year ended Year ended
l.ong term Borrowings March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
Opening Balance 7,689.88 7,786.13
Availed during the year 436.00 -
Add: Interest During Covid converted to Loan - -
Changes in Fair Value
- Impact of Effeclive Rate of Interest 9.20 7.21
Less : Repayment During the year 228.31 103.46
Add : Other adjustment - -
Closing Balance 7.906.77 768088
. Year ended Year ended
Short term Borrowings March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Cpening Balance 319.00 319.00
Add : Availed during the year 436.00 -
Less : Repaid During the year - -
Closing Balance 755.00 319.00
Year ended Year ended
Interest Expenses March 31,2023  March 31, 2022
Opening Balance 539.86 23584
Interest Charge as per Statement Profit & Loss /
intangible asset under development 2,859.66 2,270.24
Changes in Fair Value
- Impact of Effective Rate of Interest ) {9.20) {7.21}
- Unwinding of Discount on NHAI premiumy {1,616.65) {1,254.74)
- Other (269.77) {100.47)
Interest Converted to Loan - -
Interest paid to Lenders {1,067.17) (603.89)
436.73 539.86

Closing Balance




PS Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for vear endod March 31, 2023

Naote 37 Ratic Analysis

Particulars March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 % varlance Reason for Variance

1} Current ratio (a/b) 0.05 0.08 (38.23)|Ratic  decreased due to increase in

Current Assels {a) 343,55 480.57 current matudities of long term borrowing

Current Liability (b) 6,385.19 6,045.16 and NHA! Premium Payable. Reduction

2) Debt Equity ratio (c/d) 1.22 0.88 38.57{Ratio declined due to increase in loss

Debt {c) 8,225.77 8,008.68

Equity {d} 6,747.26 9,103.27

3) Debt Service Coverage ratio ( eff} 2.40 2.61 {8.07};Ratio redcued due to increase in interest

Earnings before Interest Tax & Depreciation (g) 3,108.16 1,846.08; payment

interest on Term Loan (i} 1,067,947 603.89

Principal Repayment (i) 228.31 103.46

Total Interest & Principal Repayment {f) = {i+ii} 1,295.48 707,38

4} Return on Equity ratio (gfh) (0.30) {0.19) G0.93|Retwrn on Equily is negative mainly

Profil after Tax {g) {2,360.27) {1.856.62} because company is incurring losses.

Average Sharehoider's Equily (h} 7,925.26 10,032.61

8} Trade Payable Turnover ratio (i) 2.40 3.57 {32.78);Ratio increased mainly due to increase in

Net Credit Purchass (i) §70.52 1,133.98 credit purchases as compared to last

AverageTrade Payable () 404.32 317.55 year

6) Net Capitai Yurnover ratio (ki) (0.84) {0.78) 8.45/Ratio is negative as current Habilities

Net Sales (k) 5,130.32 4,335.66 exceeded currenl assets

Current Assets {i) 31155 480.57

Current Liabikilies (i) 6,385.1% 6,045,156

Working Capital {l) = {i-ii} {6,071.64) (5,564,569

7} Net Profit ratio (m/n} (0.46) {0.43) 7441 Frofit afler tax declined in current year
due to provision of MMR expenses and

Profit after Tax (i) (2,360.27) (1.656.62) increase  in  {inance cost due o

Net Sales {n) 5,130.32 4,335.66 capitafisation

8} Return on Capital Employed (ofp} 0,03 0.04 -

Earnings before interest & Taxes (0} 499.40 221.33

Net Worth (i) 6,747.26 9,103.27

Total Debt (i} 8,225.77 §,008.88

Total Capital Employed (p) = {i+ii} 14,873.03 1711215

9) Return on investment NA NA

10} Inventory Turnover Ratio NA NA

11) Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio NA NA,




75 Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for year ended March 31, 2023

Note 38 Other Statutory Information
i} The company has no fransactions with struck off companies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 ¢r seclion 560 of Companies Act, 1956

iiy The Company have not advanced or foaned or invesled funds to any other person(s} or entitylies), including foreign entitizs {Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(a) Directly or indireclly iend or invest in ofher persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or en behalf of the company (Ullimate Beneficiaries)
{b} Provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

iy The Company have not received any fund from any person{s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Pary} with the understanding {whether

recorded in writing or othenwise) that the Company shali:
{a) Directly er indirectly lend or invest in olher persons or entiies identified in any manner whatsoaver by or on behalf of the Funding Party {Uitimale

Beneficiaries) or
{b) Provide any guarantee, securily or the like on behalf of the Uitimate Benaficiaries,
iv) The Company does nol have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during

the year in the tax assessments under the income-tax Acl, 1961

Note 39 Details of Crypto currency or virtual currency
Company has nol traded or invested in Crypto currency of Virtual Currancy during the financial year,
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